ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 18, 2003
1:32 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Chair

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senat or CGene Therri aul t

Senat or Ceor gi anna Li ncoln

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT
All Menbers Present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 31

"An Act relating to a railroad utility corridor for extension of

the Al aska Railroad to Canada and to extension of the Al aska

Railroad to connect with the North Anerican railroad system"”
SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE BI LL NO. 40
"An Act relating to construction of highways by the Departnent
of Transportation and Public Facilities."

MOVED SB 40 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 103
"An Act increasing certain notor vehicle registration fees; and
providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

SB 40 - See Transportation m nutes dated 2/18/03.
SB 103 - See Transportation m nutes dated 3/11/03.

W TNESS REG STER

M. Mark O Brien

Department of Transportation &
Public Facilities

3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- March 18, 2003



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions about SB 40

M. Kevin Jardel

Assi st ant Conm ssi oner

Department of Adm nistration

PO Box 110200

Juneau, AK 99811-0200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about SB 103

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 03-9, SIDE A

CHAIR JOHN COANDERY called the Senate Transportation Standing
Committee neeting to order at 1:32 p.m Senators Wagoner, ( son
and Chair Cowdery were present and Senators Therriault and
Lincoln arrived shortly thereafter. He inforned nenbers he woul d
not bring up SB 31 because he was still waiting for suggested
| anguage for a conmttee substitute. SB 40 was the first order
of busi ness.

SB 40- CONSTRUCTI ON OF H GHMAYS BY DOTPE

MR MARK OBRIEN, Chief Contracts Oficer for Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOIPF), told nenbers the
effect of SB 40 would be to prohibit DOIPF and agencies that it
transfers projects to from using their own enployees when the
project costs exceeded $250,000, but by statute DOTPF may
exercise the use of a force account in two instances. One is for
community and boardwal k projects where an agency such as the
Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) has a project and DOIPF is
provi ding access to that project. DOIPF may transfer [funds] to
the BIA to acconplish that project. In nany cases, a transfer is
in the interest of all agencies and is cost effective. SB 40
woul d also affect nunicipalities and cities because they would
be prohibited from asking for and receiving transfer of a
project if the cost exceeded $250, 000.

MR OBRIEN said the second instance under which DOTPF could
exercise a force account is when they use their own naintenance
staff to acconplish capital projects. DOTPF has been addressing
close to $200 million in deferred maintenance by using federa
aid funds and state maintenance staff to perform those projects
during the sumer. The types of nmaintenance projects that are
eligible include cracked ceilings, bridge repair, chip seal road
surfacing, and others. The program benefits DOTPF in a nunber of
ways. It provides the ability to transfer costs of the wnter

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- March 18, 2003



mai nt enance programto a federal aid project, thereby preserving
general fund dollars for severe winter events. DOIPF can then
retain year-round skilled, know edgeable enployees. It also
allows DOTPF to fund a portion of its equi pnent costs and defray
sone of the state costs of maintaining equipnent by charging
those costs to the federal aid projects, which further stretches
the dollars for deferred mai ntenance.

MR. O BRIEN said another key factor is the size of the program
DOTPF' s sumer nmai ntenance program represents |less than three
percent of the federal aid program More than half of that three
percent is contracted out to the private sector now. He said the
impetus for this legislation was the St. Mary's project.

CHAI R CONDERY remarked the St. Mary's project did stir things up
a bit but he knows that DOTPF did a 35 mle chip seal project on
the Od Seward H ghway a few years ago and referred to it as a
mai nt enance  proj ect. He said other states wuse different
standards for nmaintenance and construction. He has no problem
wi th DOTPF doi ng maintenance work, but he believes construction
projects should go out to conpetitive bid. He said sone states
consider any project that <costs over $50,000 to be a
construction project rather than a mai ntenance project.

He pointed out that before the state canme into its oil wealth,
the state got a non-construction rate from the unions during the
winter and hired equipnent operators from the union halls to
plow the snow. He said those are sone of the reasons he
introduced this legislation. He placed a $250,000 limt in the
bill because DOTPF said sone projects cost |less than $100, 000.
He said he believes the conpetitive process is a good one and
that everyone should be entitled to the sane Davis-Bacon wages
in both rural and urban Al aska.

1:40 p. m

SENATOR OLSON said the St. Mary's project is in his district. He
clarified that project was conpleted ahead of schedul e and under
budget. He pointed out that it looks like there wll be a
request for a significant anmount of noney to conplete the
Anchorage International Airport, which he finds appalling. He
then asked M. OBrien if he had a breakdown of the source of
funds used for force account projects, specifically federal and
general fund noney.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- March 18, 2003



MR OBRIEN said alnost all of the funds used for the force
account prograns are federal aid funds. DOIPF receives very
little in terns of general funds.

SENATOR OLSON asked how nmany DOTPF enpl oyees would be affected
by the passage of SB 40.

MR. O BRIEN said he hadn't done that calculation but one of two
t hings woul d happen. Wthout the ability to use the federal aid
to subsidize the general fund, DOTPF would either have to reduce
its sunmer enploynment or it would not be able to respond to
severe winter events with overtinme hire. He said nanagenent
woul d have to decide which alternative to take and either
alternative would result in a different nunber of enployees that
woul d be affected.

SENATOR OLSON asked what kind of effect this legislation would
have on future suppl enental budgets.

MR OBRIEN said in order to respond to severe w nter events,
DOTPF managers would have to nmake sone tough choices. Either
addi ti onal funding would have to be provided to pay for overtine
work to address such an event or DOTPF would have to reduce
sumer enpl oynent. He said a budget increase would be necessary
to maintain a consistent work force throughout the year and
respond to wi nter events.

SENATOR OLSON asked how nuch of DOTPF s capital budget would be
affected by this bill

MR. O BRIEN said since nearly all of the force account work is
done with federal funds, SB 40 would affect all projects that
cost over $250, 000.

SENATOR OLSON said he was asking for a definitive nunber.
MR. O BRI EN said he has not conputed the nunbers in that nmanner.

CHAIR CONDERY referred to Senator O son's comment on the St.
Mary's project being conpleted under budget and said there is
nothing to conpare that cost to because it was not put out to
conpetitive bid. He said he believes an audit is being done on
that project now and added that DOTPF has been very supportive
of the concept of day |abor contracts, which would assure that
| ocal peopl e get the work.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- March 18, 2003



SENATOR OLSON said the nunbers that were forwarded to his office
show that DOTPF budgeted over $3 mllion for the St. Mary's
project while total expenditures were about $2.7 mllion.

CHAI R CONDERY said his point was that a private contractor m ght
have bid that project at $1.7 million. He said there is no way
to know what the private sector mght have estimated the cost to
be.

SENATOR LINCOLN said her questions about Adm nistrative Order
199 (AO 199) hadn't been answered and although she doesn't know
its status, she believes it plays into SB 40. She pointed out
that as a resident of Ranpart she has seen what happens when an
outside contractor cones in and doesn't believe in the day | abor
contract concept. She has seen outside contractors bring in all
of their own food, manpower, equipnment, sone housing and even
furniture. Her comunity pushed for the runway project and had
to be very vocal to get just two local people hired. She said
the letter from M. James of the Tununak |IRA Council shows that
such jobs are the lifeblood of many small comrunities and SB 40
woul d have a devastating inpact. She urged to |look at what is in
the best interest of the entire state and repeated she is very
unconfortable that her questions about AO 199 have gone
unanswer ed.

CHAI R CONDERY asked if the equi pnent was available in Ranpart to
do the runway | ob.

SENATOR LI NCOLN replied sonme equi pnent was avail abl e.

CHAI R COANDERY said he worked on a nunber of projects in rura
Al aska and needed to inport a lot of things. He hired and rented
locally as nuch as possible. He said the day |abor contract
concept is pretty nuch tailored to the |ocal people.

SENATOR WAGONER commented that he understands the concerns of
rural communities but he also understands the position of the
contractors. A wonan from Nonme recently testified that her
conpany would bid on any size project in rural Al aska. He said
he sees the need for force accounting but believes it should be
limted. He asked how many projects M. O Brien foresees using a
force account on during the next year that would cost in excess
of $250, 000.

MR O BRIEN said using the year 2000 as a baseline for the

nunber of projects, two were below $250,000 and the rest were
nore. He said, "... just |looking back through the lists, a price

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- March 18, 2003



tag of $1 million would probably take care of 60 to 70 percent
of them- allow themto be done. A price tag of half that would
probably let 15 to 20 percent of themthrough.™

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked whet her any comunities forned
construction conpanies to bid projects or were they are barred
from doing so. He pointed out those conmmunities should be able
to underbid other contractors because they would not have to
nobi | i ze anyone.

MR OBRIEN said, in order to do a construction project in
excess of $100,000 in Alaska, an entity nust be bonded. In
addition, that entity nust neet the requirenents set for a
| icensed and bonded contractor. A surety conpany |ooks at
expertise, past performance, equipnent capability and capacity
before it agrees to bond an entity. He said he is not aware of
any consortiunms or groups that have been created to respond to
state bids in rural Al aska.

SENATOR THERRI AULT comment ed t hose hur dl es are not
i nsurnount abl e. He questioned whether those requirenents should
be wai ved.

MR O BRIEN said there may a way to assist those entities. DOTPF
is restricted by statute to doing business wth certain
entities. He said if that barrier is broken down, an entity
could bid a project on a conpetitive basis.

CHAI R CONDERY said the Native corporations have the ability to
bond smal | groups.

MR OBREN said if there is no licensed surety wthin the
state, there is an option under the bonding for individual
sureties to bond construction conpanies. It requires two
i ndi vidual sureties to provide identical bonding at the full
anmount .

CHAI R CONDERY asked if the purpose of bonding is to assure that
all enpl oyees get paid and to guarantee perfornmance.

MR. OBRIEN said that is correct.

SENATOR LI NCOLN responded to Senator Therriault's question about
why a village could not conpete for a bid and said what usually
happens with a force account project is that a particular
village does a particular project, but they aren't ongoing. She
said the Doyon Corporation did get involved in construction for

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- March 18, 2003



a very brief tinme, but none of the 38 village corporations in
the Interior have a construction conpany because it is cost
prohi bitive for small villages.

SENATOR WAGONER said in his area just about all of the oil field
contract work has been taken over by Native corporations. He
said they hire both Native and non-Native enployees. He said he
believes strongly in bidding out any project and using force
accounting when no bids are received.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved SB 40 from committee with individual
recommendations with its zero fiscal note.

SENATOR LI NCOLN objected because the only other conmttee of
referral was the Senate Finance Conmmttee and this conmmttee
didn't even know how nany projects would be affected by this
| egi slation or what is happening with AO 199. She said there are
too many unanswered questions to pass this legislation fromthe
one and only commttee that would scrutinize it.

SENATOR COLSON stated his objection as well saying this
| egislation is |less palatable than the version introduced | ast
year because the limt has been reduced from $1 nillion to
$250, 000.

CHAI R CONDERY called for a roll call vote.
The notion to nove SB 40 and its attached zero fiscal note from
committee carried with Senators Therriault, Wagoner and Cowdery

voting in favor and Senators Lincoln and O son opposed.

SB 103- MOTOR VEH CLE REQ STRATI ON FEES

CHAI R CONDERY announced the committee would take up SB 103 and
asked an adm nistration representative to cone forward.

MR. KEVIN JARDELL, Assistant Comm ssioner of the Departnent of
Adm nistration (DOA), remnded nenbers that Duane Bannock
provided the committee with an overview of the bill at the |ast
hearing and that he was avail able to answer questions.

CHAIR COMNDERY said he held this bill in conmttee for the
purpose of giving nenbers and the public tinme to voice
obj ections. He heard none.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked if public testinony had been taken and
noted the bill was only introduced on March 6.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- March 18, 2003



MR. JARDELL replied the bill was heard in conmittee |ast week
and was announced to the public at that tinme just as it was
t oday.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked what DOA did to publicize the |egislation.

CHAIR CONDERY remarked the committee noticed the bill in the
sane way it does every other bill. He said from the nunber of
inquiries he received, he believes people are aware of the bill

SENATOR LI NCOLN apol ogized for her absence at the previous
hearing and asked for an explanation of the need to increase
regi stration fees.

MR. JARDELL explained that user fees within DOA were reviewed to
determ ne when they were increased last, the value of the fee to
the state at that time, and whether the state is receiving that
value today. Wth regard to vehicle registration fees, DOA
determned the value had decreased significantly. Staff then
| ooked at other states to see how Alaska's fees conpared and
determ ned that the increase provided in SB 103 would still keep
Al aska's registration fees below the national average. He
acknowl edged that determ nation was nade in-house and that it
was difficult to conpare vehicle registration fees from state to
state because each state uses a different nethodology. For
exanpl e, sone states inpose taxes in addition to the vehicle
registration fee; some calculate the value of the car in the
registration fee formula. SB 103 updates the fees to better
reflect the intent of the original |egislation.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked for the average registration fee in the
nati on.

MR. JARDELL said the national average is about $118. He said he
woul d provide her with the fornmula DOA used.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if DOA staff determ ned an average fee for
each category of vehicle.

MR. JARDELL said they did not. They did a baseline calculation
to see if SB 103 would treat Alaska citizens in a disparate
manner fromthe other states. He said it would be too onerous to
make that conparison for every category.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked how DOA cane up wth a taxicab
regi stration fee of $160.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- March 18, 2003



MR. JARDELL said in general, the fees were raised $10 per year
so the biannual registrations would increase $20. However, the
passenger vehicle registration fee increase is $30. That was a
streamining decision. Years ago, passenger vehicles were
charged different rates than SUVs or trucks. It does not nake
sense to do that today so passenger vans and pick-up trucks were
conbined into one category. By increasing the passenger vehicle
fee $30, the fee would be the sane for both categories. He
expl ained the extra $2 stenms from the tinme when the Legislature
instituted biannual registrations and decided it didn't want to
sinply double the annual fee so they doubled the fee and
subtracted $2. DOA decided to sinplify and raise the fee an
addi tional $2 because it's easier to collect $100 than $98.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if school buses woul d be exenpt.

MR. JARDELL said school buses would be treated in the sanme way
they are today and it is his understanding that school buses for
a non-profit organization are exenpt wunder the non-profit
category. School buses for other entities would pay registration
f ees.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if the fee is $300 for a school bus.

MR. JARDELL said he believes the fee anobunt is the sane as the
anount charged for a comrercial vehicle, which depends on the
wei ght of the vehicle. He offered to get back to Senator Lincoln
to verify that information. He said Section 1(4) applies to tour
buses only. That is one area in which DOA nade a policy call on
the increase. In the past, tour buses used for out-of-state
tourists were in a special category with a fee lower than the
normal conmmercial rate. That rate was increased.

SENATOR OLSON asked M. Jardell if the bill distinguishes
bet ween school buses owned by school districts versus those
owned by the private sector.

MR. JARDELL said he believes a distinction is made for non-
profit entities. He offered to get back to the commttee wth
nore information on school buses. He repeated that SB 103 does
not change the current method of charging registration fee for
school buses; it only increases the fee.

SENATOR WAGONER noted sone districts own their school buses
whil e others contract with private owners.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- March 18, 2003



TAPE 03-09, SIDE B

MR. JARDELL said it is his understanding that a school district
that owns its buses pays a registration fee.

SENATOR WAGONER asked why the fee is the sanme for a passenger
vehi cl e and a notor hone.

MR, JARDELL said that was a previous policy call that DOA did
not change. The idea behind it was that a notor hone in Al aska
is not used for nore than a couple of nonths per year. The sane
|l ogic applies to registration fee for notorcycles.

SENATOR WAGONER said he thinks notor honme owners are getting a
free ride because many of the nmotor honme owners use those
vehicles from April through Cctober. He said there is a
tremendous anount of notor hone traffic on the roads between
Anchorage and the Kenai Peninsula and Seward. He said he
believes that fee is very low for a person driving a $500, 000
not or hone.

CHAI R CONDERY said trailer and notor hone registration in other
states is a |lot nore.

SENATOR WAGONER pointed out they also pay a special licensing
fee to the county.

CHAI R COADERY asked if the boroughs in Al aska charge a separate
fee.

MR. JARDELL replied they do not.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if | ocal governnents have that option
MR. JARDELL said he did not know.

CHAI R CONDERY t hought they do have that option

SENATOR OLSON said although the fees for nmotor honmes and
notorcycles are tied to usage, it is his understanding that the
majority of the fees collected are used for road nai ntenance. He
said the wear and tear on a road caused by a notorcycle is far
different from that of a notor hone. He said he would consider

t he wei ght of a vehicle.

MR. JARDELL said the fee charged for a notor honme is nore than
the fee charged for a notorcycle because of road damage. He said

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- March 18, 2003



notorcycle fee isn't the sane as passenger vehicle fee because
notorcycles are used for a limted tine during the year.

SENATOR OLSON asked when fees were | ast increased.

MR. JARDELL offered to get back to Senator A son wth an answer
to that question. He said he believes the |ast overall increase
was in 1978 and the disparity between trucks and cars was
changed in 1986. The Legislature decided on the biannua
registration at that tine.

SENATOR OLSON asked if the registration fees only apply to
vehi cl es used on state roads.

MR. JARDELL said they apply to vehicles used on state and
bor ough roads.

SENATOR OLSON asked if it applies to vehicles that are driven on
t he beach.

MR. JARDELL said SB 103 does not change current practice.

SENATOR OLSON asked if there are three categories of school
buses: those owned by school districts; those owned by private
contractors; and private buses owned by private schools.

MR. JARDELL could not verify that.

SENATOR OLSON asked how the fees for those three categories
conpare with each ot her

MR, JARDELL replied that a non-profit agency would seek a
registration under its non-profit status. Qher agencies or
school bus owners would seek registration for a genera
commercial vehicle. He repeated that he would verify that
information for conmttee nenbers.

SENATOR LINCOLN said she |like the conmttee to hold this
| egislation until it gets that information. She asked if nost
road damage is done during the nonths from May to Septenber, the
sanme time notor homes are used.

CHAI R COADERY thought npst damage is done during the wnter
nont hs when studded snow tires are used.

SENATOR LI NCOLN said she was thinking about vehicle weight and
noted the Legislature separated fees for passenger vehicles and

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- March 18, 2003



trucks in 1986 because of a disparity. Now they would be charged
the same amount. She asked M. Jardell to provide her with the
formula DOA used to determ ne the conparison to the national
average and information about registration fees for school
buses.

MR. JARDELL said he would provide the information, but wanted
committee nenbers to understand that SB 103 increases the fees
and not the nethodol ogy.

SENATOR LINCOLN said she still wants to know who would fall
under that non-profit status.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Jardell if he wote down conmittee
menbers' questions.

MR. JARDELL said he would provide answers to the questions about
the local option, how school buses wll be charged, and the
formul a used to determ ne the national average.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Jardell to provide the answers
qui ckly because he would |like to see them before the bill is
taken up in another commttee.

MR. JARDELL said he would do so.

CHAI R COWDERY announced he would hold SB 103 until the next
Senate Transportation Commttee hearing.

SENATOR WAGONER noted his intent to offer an anendnent to SB 103
to increase the notor honme registration fee to $150. He said he
al so believes that notor honmes for hire should be categorized
under Section 1(4) and that fee should be increased to $300. He
said about 25 to 30 percent of the nobtor hones on the road are
rentals.

SENATOR (OLSON suggested decreasing the fee for passenger
vehi cl es rather than increasing the fee for notor hones.

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
CHAI R CONDERY adj ourned the neeting at 2:37 p.m

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- March 18, 2003



